
 

Redevelopment 
Commission  
 
  166 Lincolnway 
  Valparaiso, IN 46383 
  219-462-1161 
  Valpo.us 
 

President  

Rob Thorgren 
 Thorgren Tool & 

Molding  
 

Vice President  
 Barbara Domer 
       City Council 

Member 
  
 

Secretary  
                Bill Durnell  

GATX Corp. 

 

Members  

           Trish Sarkisian  

    1st Source Bank  

 
    Diana Reed  

 City Council           
Member  

 

  Auxiliary Member 
John Nuppnau 

 Nuppnau Lawn & 
Snow 

 
Spencer Skinner 

Baker Tilly   
 

 

Advisory Member 
  Frank Dessuit  

Representing  
Schools  

 

Legal Counsel  

  Patrick Lyp 

 

Director of Development  

  George Douglas 

 

 

  
 
 

RDC MEETING AGENDA: Thursday, April 10, 2025 

4:00 p.m. Executive Session: The Valparaiso Redevelopment Commission will 
meet in Executive Session at 4:00 p.m. The Executive Session will convene at 
City Hall, 166 W. Lincolnway, Valparaiso, IN 46383, pursuant to 5-14-1.5-
6.1(b)(2)(B) discussing strategy with respect to the purchase or lease of real 
property. 

 

4:10 p.m. (Immediately following Executive Session, whichever occurs later) 
 

NOTICE: The Redevelopment Commission will meet on Thursday, April 
10th. This meeting will be held by the Valparaiso Redevelopment Commission at 
Valparaiso City Hall, 166 W. Lincolnway, Valparaiso, Indiana on April 10, 2025 
at 4:10 pm and is open to the public. In addition, the meeting will be 
livestreamed, and a recording of this meeting will be posted on the City’s website 
http://www.ci.valparaiso.in.us. The Agenda Packet can be viewed on the City’s 
website https://ci.valparaiso.in.us/1784/Meeting-Agenda-Packets.  
 

1. Approval of Meeting Minutes  
a. April 10, 2025 Executive Session Minutes (Bill Durnell) 
b. March 13, 2025 Meeting Minutes (Bill Durnell)  

2. Approval of Claims Register and Financial Report (George Douglas) 
3. Resolution 01-2025 -2025 Budget Year Determination for Tax Increment for 

the Allocation Area (George Douglas/Karl Cender)  
4. Parking Lot User Agreement (George Douglas)  
5. Attainable Housing Grant & Application (George Douglas)  
6. Project Update - Marsh St Lift Station, Water Main Extension on Montdale, 

Montdale Paving (George Douglas, Max Rehlander, Steve Poulos)    
7.   Other Business – Meeting Time Discussion, Local Match Project Update   
      (George Douglas)  
8.   Public Comment 
9. Adjournment 

 
Public Comment 
The public comment session is provided as an opportunity for residents to address the 
Redevelopment Commission members about matters pertaining to the City. Participation 
is encouraged; however, to respect others who wish to speak, public comment is not 
intended to be a public conversation. Before speaking, a person must provide their name 
and address. Exceptions may be considered if requested by emailing Debra Melcic 
(dmelcic@valpo.us) prior to the commencement of the meeting. A speaker will be given 
a reasonable amount of time (as determined by the President) to make a comment 
and/or express an opinion.  No person will be recognized more than once per meeting.  
The Redevelopment Commission members, and City staff are available after the meeting 
for questions and more extended discussions.  

 
 Future Meetings: (Dates subject to change) 4:00 P.M. 

 
• May 8, 202 • June 12, 2025 

 

http://www.ci.valparaiso.in.us/1684/Watch-City-Meetings
https://ci.valparaiso.in.us/1784/Meeting-Agenda-Packets
mailto:dmelcic@valpo.us


 

 

VALPARAISO REDEVELOPMENT COMMISSION 

Regular Meeting Minutes 

March 13, 2025 
 

 

The regular meeting of the Valparaiso Redevelopment Commission was called to order at  

4:12 p.m. on Thursday, March 13, 2025, President Rob Thorgren presided.   
 

Members present were: Rob Thorgren, Barbara Domer, Bill Durnell, Trish Sarkisian, Diana Reed and Frank 

Dessuit.  Mr. Dessuit had to leave at 5:00 p.m. due to a previous engagement.  Also present were Director of 

Development George Douglas, City Attorney Patrick Lyp, Community Engagement Director Maggie Clifton, 

Planning Director Bob Thompson, Associate Planner Jessica Gage, President of the Valparaiso Chamber Rex 

Richards, and members of the public.   

Mr. Thorgren (12:01) stated in respect for residents’ time, the agenda will be changed, and Mr. Douglas will 

make a statement followed by a vote and public comment regarding the statement.  

Mr. Douglas (12:11) (stated, Mr. President, I would like to introduce one item here, which will be the 

termination of option and release. On Tuesday, the mayor announced the city would cease all efforts to explore 

potential data center project.  This decision was unanimously supported by the Council.  This decision has 

been communicated with Agincourt, and they've agreed to withdraw and release the option on the land.  Before 

I ask for the motion, I would just like to state this was never a done deal.  The city had not approved the project 

because a project had yet to be presented to this Redevelopment Commission or to the city.   

Additionally, many of the questions and concerns that have been expressed by the community and the citizens 

were mutually shared by the city as well.  The Commission had not approved or even endorsed a data center, 

the city administration and the entire RDC membership were supportive of publicly starting a process through 

an RPO, which is a request for public offering in December of last year at our meeting, this is with the full 

knowledge that what we were doing was a data center as a potential use.  

The Commission unanimously approved the Option Agreement with Agincourt Investments at their January 

meeting.  To be clear, this was not approval of the project, but an affirmation to start a process to determine the 

feasibility of a potential project.  The Option Agreement identified several conditions or off ramps that had to 

be satisfied and public approvals necessary, which would include the Redevelopment Commission, the Plan 

Commission, as well as the City Council. These would all be necessary after identification of a data center as 

the potential or intended use of the site, there are several steps and hurdles along the due diligence process that 

may have easily resulted in the developer determining the data center was not viable at this location, which 

would have resulted in their withdraw of the Option Agreement without ever identifying the project publicly as 

a data center.  NDAs, or non-disclosure agreements, or confidentiality agreements are very common when very 

common with projects that are of this size; when there's this kind of competition for data centers, in particular, 

as you see around Porter County, Northwest Indiana, and certainly the public perception of a data center.  

I understand now from the community perspective; this process appears difficult to follow and understand.  

This is especially relatable when there is an NDA involved and/or there is city owned property which 

introduces different regulations and procedures this commission or the city must follow in order to even sell or 

have an option on a piece of property.  I understand how this process may look from the outside, it's very 

typical in practice for economic development projects to investigate and evaluate all aspects of a site before 

submitting a project to the city or to a Commission to evaluate or review or to have public comment on.  Doing 

so comes at great risk and expense, and that's why having some sort of option agreement, or purchase 

dmelcic
Text Box
1

dmelcic
Subject to Approval



 

 

agreement, provides some sort of safeguard to all party parties before a project comes forward.  Following the 

process initiated with the option agreement may very well have resulted in the very same outcome we have 

before us today. But as the mayor stated, the citizens have spoken, and they believe a data center is not in the 

best interest of the city.  

As a final step, Mr. President, I am recommending to the commission that they approve and authorize you to 

terminate the Option Agreement with Agincourt investment LLC and to direct and release all escrow funds 

back to Agincourt. This agreement has been reviewed and approved by Patrick Lyp, our city attorney, as well 

as legal counsel for Agincourt.   

Motion: Mr. Durnell motioned to approve the termination of the Option Agreement and release of escrow 

funds to Agincourt Investments, LLC. Ms. Domer seconded the motion. A voice vote was unanimously 

carried.   

PUBLIC COMMENT  

TO HEAR CITIZENS’ FULL COMMENTS, PLEASE REFER TO THE WATCH CITY MEETINGS 

SECTION OF THE CITY OF VALPARAISO WEBSITE (WWW.CI.VALPARAISO.IN.US)  

 

Dan Hallmen - 277 W 550 N (17:22) - expressed concerns about politics, taxation and conflict of interest 

surrounding the data center, along with his concerns for the environment and taxpayer money.   

 

Chris Pupillo – 302 Madison St (24:00) expressed concerns about the lack of public engagement and 

transparency with the data center project. He would like to see the meetings moved to 6:00 p.m.  

 

Hannah Trueblood – McCord Rd. (32:36) expressed concerns about the RDC having their own attorney to 

avoid conflicts and improve transparency. 

 

Melissa Reed - Blackhawk Rd. (35:13) expressed concerns about the environmental impact and lack of public 

input for the data center.  

 

Duane Davidson - 701 Elmhurst Ave (41:02) expressed concern about green space and suggested donating the 

land to the Shirley Heinz Land Trust to restore community trust.  

 

Doug Ellis - 432 Meadowbrook Dr. (42:53) thank the members for listening to the public’s concerns and 

emphasizes the need for transparency and public engagement in future projects.   

 

Resident (43:12) - expressed relief that the data center will not happen. 

 

Bret Kutansky - 411 Meadowbrook Dr. (46:51) presented a report on actions related to the data center 

proposal. The report and reply to the report is attached.  

 

Dan Sherman – 2153 Ransom Rd.  (49:14) supports the idea of a community sports complex and suggests 

scaling back to the project to make it more affordable.   

 

Jeanine Hornback – 751 East Port Center (53:53) expressed concerns regarding the decision making process 

and would like more transparency and public input in future projects.  

 

http://www.ci.valparaiso.in.us/


 

 

Meghan Chonowski – 408 Meadowbrook Dr. (62:48) expressed concerns about issued raised by the 

community, including disclosing communication and establishing a citizen review committee.  

  

Jerry Scott - 2416 Alison Circle (68:19) expressed concerns about the data center and that the public’s 

understanding was underestimated.  Projects should be brought to the public.  

 

Kelly Weisenbacher – 455 Sheffield Dr (69:38) expressed her concerns for the data center because she has a 

young family, and they wanted the park project to move forward.  

 

Resident (71:02) expressed concerns that the community was not included in the decision-making process.  

 

Resident (72:14) expressed concerns about how quickly this was moving.  He also voiced concern for the 

environment, noise pollution, along with children and animals in the community and the farmland that is being 

lost to projects.  

 

Councilwoman Domer (77:20) Councilwoman Domer shared her personal experience with city politics and 

emphasizes the importance of public engagement and transparency.  She outlines steps that could improve 

processes, including moving meetings to 6:00 p.m., posting agendas on social media and requesting an 

independent consultant for an impact analysis. Councilwoman Domer also highlighted positive developments 

in the 2025 budget including increased funding for sidewalk repairs, a new housing initiative, and 

neighborhood and school grants.  

 

Ms. Sarkisian (93:01) expressed her gratitude to the public for coming and voicing their concerns.  

 

Councilwoman Reed (93:31) expressed her gratitude for the public coming and voicing their concerns.  She 

has corresponded with the public in person and via email and would like to see the engagement continue.  

 

Mr. Thorgren (93:49) expressed that he received phone calls, spoke to people in person and received emails 

from residents and appreciated the engagement and constructive criticism.   

 

Mr. Durnell (94:23) stated he became President of his neighborhood association because of the possibility of a 

historical home being torn down.  After running for mayor, Mr. Durnell wanted to stay engaged with the public 

and community.  Mayor Costas appointed him to the Redevelopment Commission, and he is proud to serve on 

the board.  

 

ITEM #1- MINUTES (94:48): 

Mr. Durnell stated Commission members met for an Executive session.  

 

Motion: Ms. Reed moved to approve the March 13, 2025, executive meeting minutes.  Ms. Sarkisian seconded.  

A voice vote was unanimously carried.   

 

Mr. Durnell reported copies of February 13, 2025, regular meeting minutes were distributed to members for 

their review prior to the meeting.  After reviewing the minutes, all seemed in order.   

 

Motion: Ms. Reed moved to approve the February 13, 2025, meeting minutes.  Ms. Sarkisian seconded.  A 

voice vote was unanimously carried.   

 

 



 

 

ITEM #2 CLAIMS REGISTER AND FINANCIAL REPORT: (95:40): 

Mr. Douglas reported the Commission was sent the March 2025 Claims Registers and February Financial 

Report prior to the meeting. Mr. Douglas highlighted a few key claims and noteworthy items in the Claims 

Register and Financial Report.   

 

Discussion from Commission members ensued.  Questions and items of discussion included: 

• Whether the MKSK invoice should be paid out of grants match 

• Whether Barnes & Thornburg lobbying contract is separate from the legal contract 

• If the Redevelopment Commission will pay all NIPSCO bills and insurance coverage for the parking 

garage  

 

City staff answered and addressed questions and discussion items. 

 

Motion: Ms. Reed motioned to approve the March Register. Mr. Durnell seconded the motion. A voice vote 

was unanimously carried.   

 

Motion: Ms. Reed motioned to approve the February Financial report. Ms. Sarkisian seconded the motion. A 

voice vote was unanimously carried.  

 

ITEM #3 2025 NEIGHBORHOOD IMPROVEMENT GRANTS: (105:57): 

Ms. Clifton reported that this program began in 2018 and is funded by the Redevelopment Commission 

and administered by the Community Engagement Department.  The goal of the program is to bring 

neighborhoods together around shared goals and enhance relationships between neighborhoods and the 

city.  

From 2018-2024, the Neighborhood Improvement Grant program has supported 120 community 

projects in more than 40 neighborhoods. The financial support from the Commission has allowed many 

improvement projects to come to life, while building bridges with a variety of neighborhood groups 

around the city. 

 

The Commission has budgeted $200,000 for the Neighborhood Improvement Grant Program in 2025 through the annual 

budget process. The Grant Review Committee has reviewed applications and determined funding to support 19 

neighborhood projects at $167,040. The balance allows staff to explore additional neighborhood-based initiatives in 

2025.Discussion from Commission members ensued.  Questions and items of discussion included: 

• What were the three grants not fully funded and why?  

• Does Calkins Hill have their own HOA?  

• How many neighborhoods applied and received grants in 2024? 

• Are neighborhoods given direction if their grants are not funded?  

 

City staff answered and addressed questions and discussion items. 

 

Motion: Mr. Durnell motioned to approve the Neighborhood Improvement Grants. Ms. Reed seconded the 

motion. A voice vote was unanimously carried.   

 

ITEM #4 REPLACEMENT COACH: (113:38) 



 

 

Mr. Thompson reported the current bus fleet is utilizing 3 new buses and 1 old bus that is approximately 15 

years old, which incurs high maintenance expenses.  Mr. Thompson is requesting $200,000 for the local match 

to fund a replacement bus. A federal grant through NIRPC will fund the remaining balance for the bus.  The 

local match is approximately 20%.  

 

Discussion from Commission members ensued.  Questions and items of discussion included: 

• What is the age of the fleet? 

• Is the ridership back to pre-covid buses?  

• Do we need 5 bus routes?  

• What happens to the buses that are retired?  

• Is there a cash balance that needs to be maintained?  

• What percentage of operating costs are covered by ridership fees?  

• What is the total budget for bus operations?  

• How long is the contract with Royal Excursion?  

 

City staff answered and addressed questions and discussion items. 

 

Motion: Ms. Reed motioned to approve the Chicago Dash Replacement Coach. Ms. Sarkisian seconded the 

motion. A voice vote was unanimously carried.   

 

ITEM #5 MOU NILEA: (122:28) 

Mr. Douglas reported that Northern Indiana Law Enforcement Academy (“NILEA”) () will relocate from 

Hobart, Indiana to Montdale Dr. directly south of the MAAC campus.  The project includes moving a 12-inch 

water main across the property and carried to 325.  There was a previous agreement between utilities and the 

MAAC that stated when a new project was done, and utilities are requested that the water infrastructure be 

carried out to 325.  A business was opened on 325 and had to drill a well due to a water line not being readily 

available to tap into.  The Commission budgeted money for this project in 2025.  It would make the most 

economic sense to work with NILEA while the project is under construction to do the design of the water 

main.  VCU would supervise the contractor and will extend the water main to 325.  Engineering estimate is 

$500,000 if the work is done by utilities.  The cost would be less if the work is done while the site is already 

under construction.  Mr. Douglas requested approval of a memorandum of understanding (“MOU”) for the 

NILEA project utility work.  

 

Discussion from Commission members ensued.  Questions and items of discussion included: 

• Whether the contract is a not-to-exceed number?  

• Is NILEA hiring their own design engineer to do public utilities work? 

 

City staff answered and addressed some of the questions and discussion items, however some questions 

remained open. 

 

The MOU for NILEA was tabled.   

 

ITEM #7 SCHOOL CHALLENGE GRANT: (127:53) 

Ms. Melcic reported the Challenge Grant budget has annually been divided between East Porter County 

Schools (EPCS) and Valparaiso Community schools (VCS) based on per capita enrollment. Based on the 

numbers provided by the Department of Education, VCS would receive $441,278.17 and EPCS would receive 

$158,721.82.   



 

 

 

For 2025, we have added Porter County Career & Technical Education and SELF to the Challenge Grant 

program.  Both schools will receive a grant for up to $50,000 in reimbursement for approved expenses.  

 

We are asking the schools to provide invoices, and reimbursement will be made when the invoices are 

reviewed and approved. 

 

Discussion from Commission members ensued.  Questions and items of discussion included: 

• What is the deadline for the grant application?  

• Is SELF and the Career Center aware that the funds should be used for East Porter County and 

Valparaiso students because it is redevelopment dollars.  

• Why a disparity between the budget and annual report?  

 

City staff answered and addressed the questions and discussion items. 

 

Motion: Ms. Reed motioned to approve the School Challenge Grants. Ms. Domer seconded the motion. A 

voice vote was unanimously carried.   

 

ITEM #8 2024 ANNUAL REPORT: (132:29) 

Mr. Douglas reported Karl Cender and Daniel Dalton from Cender/Dalton serve as the Redevelopment 

Commission’s fiscal consultant.  Cender Dalton partners with the Redevelopment Commission as well as City 

Council when it comes to incentives, tax abatements and certain projects requesting bonding.  

 

Mr. Cender reported the Annual Report is a required report that comes before the Redevelopment Commission 

to summarize the Commissioner members and employees, cash balances, revenues and expenditures, 

outstanding obligations and lists of all the parcels in the various allocation areas and what the captured 

assessed values.  The overlapping units report is also included to make the public aware of the budget, the 

long-term plans for the allocation areas and potential tax impact the allocation areas have.   

 

The very first allocation area was created in 1994 and there are a total of 5 allocation areas.  Mr. Cender 

reported the captured assessed value for pay 2024 represents almost 18% of Valparaiso’s total assessed value 

of $2,384,141.  All allocation areas have a sunset date and typically new allocation areas go out 25 years from 

the date of financing.  The original allocation area sunsets in 2040.   The county auditor tracks the information 

and when each area sunsets.   

 

Mr. Cender discussed the outstanding debt service and the distribution of tax increment in 2024.  Series 2019 

and Series 2016 B have been paid off as of January 2025.   

 

Mr.  Cender also discussed the breakdown of the 2025 General Fund and TIF budget revenue and 

expenditures. The purpose of the Redevelopment Commission is for rehabilitation, redevelopment and 

economic development and that is the real purpose of the allocation areas.     

 

Mr. Cender stated when it comes to tax impact, when the allocation areas were created, the perception is that 

money is being taken from taxpayers and an underlying perception that a lot of the growth would not have 

happened, but for, the Commission creating the allocation areas to approve the economic development 

projects.  The Redevelopment Commission had foresight to create the allocation areas where we have 

additional growth and a lot of projects to help benefit our citizens.  

 



 

 

The Annual Report once approved, will be loaded onto Gateway before the April 15th deadline.  At the next 

meeting, a resolution will be presented for consideration that will need to be approved and communicated to 

the County Auditor by June.  Also, a copy of this budget will be presented to City Council.   

 

Discussion from Commission members ensued: 

• Why has the assessed value increased if we have not added parcels to the allocation areas?  

• Whether assessors are focusing more on getting commercial property values in line  

• Is the original allocation area an exception for the 25 years?  

• Are Journeyman and Calkins Hill slow to be assessed, since they have not produced enough revenue to 

cover the bond payments? 

• Are Journeyman, Calkins Hill, Vale View and Grand Gardner Hotel developer backed bonds?   

• Where does the revenue come from in the General Fund?  

• If you are getting a circuit breaker on your taxes would the allocation areas affect your taxes?  

 

City staff answered and addressed questions and discussion items. 

 

Motion: Mr. Durnell motioned to approve the Annual Report subject to the typographical error on Exhibit 2 

being corrected to say 2025. Ms. Reed seconded the motion. A voice vote was unanimously carried.   

 

ITEM #9 OTHER BUSINESS: (164:30) 

None.  

 

ITEM #10 PUBLIC COMMENT: (164:36) 

Jeanine Hornback voiced concerns about the extension to 325, the $200,000 allocated for our local match to 

federal funds for a Chicago Dash bus, what the cost of the bus would be and if we would recoup money from 

the leased bus that will no longer be in service.  

 

ITEM #11 ADJOURNMENT: (171:09) 

Staff said they had no further items for the Commission’s consideration. Mr. Durnell motioned to adjourn the 

meeting with Ms. Sarkisian seconding. A voice vote was unanimously carried. The meeting was adjourned at 

6:52 p.m.  

 

 

 _______________________________  

Bill Durnell, Secretary  



1 
 

March 12, 2025 

 

Report of Findings of Valparaiso Redevelopment Commission (RDC) Actions Regarding the 

Property Located on the East Side of Valparaiso Between 400N and 500N 

______________________________________________________________________ 

The following report contains my personal findings on the mistakes, inconsistencies, 

inaccuracies, and mismanagement of the Valparaiso RDC in its fiduciary duties under IC 36-7-14-

2.5. These findings regard the Request for Written Offers (RFO) process and related activities 

from approximately December 16, 2024, to March 11, 2025, in relation to the possible 

development of the property at 500N.  

This report is intended to help identify failures that will ultimately improve the processes and 

management techniques of the Valparaiso RDC in executing its fiduciary duties to the citizens of 

Valparaiso in future development projects. It is not intended to introduce accusations or make 

personal attacks. In order to explain the failures clearly, some identifying information must be 

provided. I present recommendations for improvements.  

I have no previous affiliation or prior relationships with any of the RDC’s members or its director, 

save for the following: 

• I worked with Ms. Sarkisian on the execution of an estate of a family member in 2020; it 

was a pleasant and amicable experience. 

• I knew Mr. Thorgren (VHS’95) as an acquaintance in high school. I was VHS’94.  

I make this report as a private citizen of Valparaiso. Though I have collaborated with neighbors 

and others to gather information, this work is solely my own. I have no legal training; this report 

draws on observation and reason. I report the facts as collected and support them with 

evidence. If analysis proves them inaccurate, I welcome corrections by all means. My desire is 

that the public should have a complete and accurate record of these events. My duty is to my 

fellow citizens of Valparaiso.  

 

Respectfully submitted, 

 

Bret M. Kutansky 
Lieutenant Commander, US NAVY (Ret.) 
411 Meadowbrook Drive 
Valparaiso, IN 46383 



2 
 

Index of RDC Failures in Best Known Chronological Order 

 

1. Failure to conduct a fair, open, and viable RFO process. 

 

2. Failure to issue a newspaper advertisement with accurate dates. 

 

3. Failure to recognize the sensitive nature of a proposed data center and conduct preliminary 

due diligence prior to signing an option agreement. 

 

4. Failure to fully comprehend the terms of the option agreement. 

 

5. Failure to fully comprehend the value of the property as it related to this specific proposal. 

 

6. Agreeing to a possible bifurcation of its fiduciary duties to the citizens of Valparaiso. 

 

7. Failure to consider the need for rezoning. 

 

8. Failure to enter an accurate effective date on page 1 of the option agreement. 

 

9. Failure to manage publicly available files related to the property 500N. 

 

10. Failure to coordinate with city public relations officials to avoid issuing false or misleading 

statements. 

 

 

 

 



3 
 

1. Failure to conduct a fair, open, and viable RFO process. 

The RDC directed a short RFO window from the date of publication in the Northwest Indiana 

Times on Dec. 18, 2024 to an (intended) deadline date of January 6, 2025, when all RFOs were 

to be received. This period encompassed only 12 business days over the Christmas and New 

Year’s holidays. 

This abbreviated window raises concerns about the fairness of the RFO process, specifically, if all 

interested parties would have truly had enough time to notice and respond to the RFO. 

It further raises concerns as to whether the RDC did everything reasonably within its power to 

honestly attract the “best and brightest” ideas for the community.  

 

RECOMMENDATION: Each RFO or RFP should be accompanied, at a minimum, by a public press 

release from the City of Valparaiso and a full press event where appropriate. Any issued 

RFO/RFP should have a window as long as practicably possible, starting at a minimum of 30 

business days.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



4 
 

2. Failure to issue a newspaper advertisement with accurate dates. 

As stated above, the RDC intended to open an RFO window from the date of publication in the 

Northwest Indiana Times on Dec. 18, 2024 to a deadline date of January 6, 2025, when all RFOs 

were to be received. 

However, the RDC failed to check the published dates for accuracy, instead succumbing to the 

common error in December and January of forgetting to advance the calendar year. 

As it appeared in print and can still be found online, the deadline date is listed as January 6, 

2024, instead of January 6, 2025. Technically, Agincourt submitted their proposal ONE YEAR past 

the deadline date. 

While IC 5-3-1-2.3 indicates that an Indiana court would likely not invalidate the proposal for 

this error, it displays sloppiness and a lack of attention to detail on the part of the RDC. 

 

RECOMMENDATION: Try harder. There is no excuse for a lack of attention to detail in matters of 

this importance.  

 

 

 



5 
 

3. Failure to recognize the sensitive nature of a proposed data center and conduct preliminary 

due diligence prior to signing an option agreement. 

The Agincourt RFO was officially discussed, considered, and ultimately approved with a 5-0 vote 

at the January 9, 2025 RDC Meeting. Discussions in the Executive Session remain unknown to 

the public (permitted due to the subject matter of the proposal, i.e., real estate). However, in 

the public meeting available to watch online, the RDC demonstrates a glaring lack of awareness 

as to the potential sensitive nature of a data center proposal. Furthermore, similar proposals 

had just been denied due to public outcry in Chesterton (June 2024) and Burns Harbor (October 

2024). The RDC must have been aware of this yet still chose to enter straight into an option 

agreement, assuming that it would all be sorted out in the due diligence period.  

Data center proposals that are to be located anywhere near residential areas are a controversial 

topic on a national scale. A 10-minute Google research session would indicate to any average 

person that a data center abutting residential neighborhoods should be expected to invite a 

large amount of public scrutiny and outcry.  

 

RECOMMENDATION: It is incumbent upon RDC members to have a general awareness of 

proposals that deal with locations of sensitive structures (e.g., chemical plants, prisons, data 

centers). The RDC should take time to conduct its own thorough preliminary due diligence 

before signing any option agreements. A public comment period could be opened to gather 

initial feedback before proceeding into an option agreement. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



6 
 

4. Failure to fully comprehend the terms of the option agreement. 

It is critical to understand that entering into the option agreement with Agincourt actually 

allowed for two distinct outcomes: 

 A. Agincourt would purchase the land and construct a data center. 

 B. Agincourt would purchase the land but be denied the right to construct a data center 

because of snags at some other point in the process (e.g., rezoning approval, NIPSCO, water 

usage, etc.) This outcome would eliminate the data center, but would leave Agincourt as the 

new owner of the 500N property. 

These two outcomes are demonstrated in the press release by Mayor Costas on March 11, 

which states, “I have spoken to the potential developer, Agincourt, and they have agreed to 

withdraw from pursuing the project, and also to release their option on the land.”  

 

However, in reviewing the interactions of the RDC during the January 9, 2025 meeting, it is clear 

that there are some members of the RDC who come away from the discussion believing only 

Outcome A is a possibility.  

(Transcribing from the January 9 Meeting - Timestamps are approximate. Transcription is to 

the best of my ability; any mistakes are unintentional.) 

33:00: Mr. Douglas: “This, by no means, does this commit us to selling the property. This just 

allows us to do the due diligence on a substantial development & parcel outside - in - the city 

that the commission owns.” 

40:00: Ms. Domer: “So George you indicated that this option agreement doesn’t commit the 

RDC to sell and so explain what exactly we are committing to - in this - if we approve this option 

agreement.” 

40:20: Mr. Douglas: “Yeah and I’ll let Patrick jump in if I misspeak or if I’m not clear on 

something but what this is committing us to do is to enter a due diligence period at minimum of 

180 days for the developer to satisfy all of these conditions, especially the stuff I talked about in 

item #6 that’s in their, in their response to the RFO. And so during that due diligence period 

there are things that we need to agree, negotiate and agree to, before you’d ever get to a close, 

and that is the real estate purchase agreement, that’s an Economic Development Agreement, 

that is a set aside for future park or pathway whatever that form might take whether it be an 

easement or some other form for that property, how we protect any of the wells that are out 



7 
 

there…so I think those are the things that would have to be worked through before you got to 

an actual close or transaction.” 

There is no further clarification offered to this question before Mr. Thorgren proceeds to ask for 

a motion to accept the offer, which passes unanimously.  

However, when I asked the same question in an email to Mr. Lyp, I got a very different response. 

His comments in red below. 

 

The entire RDC needed to be crystal clear on the nature of the option agreement before signing 

it. This could have led to a situation where the RDC lost control of possession of the property to 

Agincourt, creating an entirely new mess.  

There is one other important bit of possible confusion introduced in the discussion. Mr. Douglas 

explains, “what this is committing us to do is to enter a due diligence period at minimum of 180 

days for the developer to satisfy all of these conditions…” The phrasing is important because it 

sounds like he is saying that the due diligence period will definitely last (“at minimum”) 180 

days, so nothing will happen before that, no matter what.  

But Paragraph 10 clearly indicates that Agincourt could exercise the option to purchase the land 

AT ANY TIME during the due diligence period. This is a huge difference and needed to be clearly 



8 
 

understood by the RDC. 

 

Finally, there is no reference made to Paragraph 12 Assignability. If this is boilerplate language in 

an option agreement, then I freely admit my inexperience. It seems to me that this clause 

should have at least garnered mention in the RDC’s discussion, given that it implies that the city 

could eventually be dealing with a new, unknown entity if the data center went forward.  

 

 

RECOMMENDATION: If an option agreement appears to have non-standard terms, then invite a 

second and third legal opinion on it. Getting several sets of eyes on a contract worth $9 million 

dollars will only improve the outcome. Don’t stop asking questions until every clause is made 

100% clear.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



9 
 

5. Failure to fully comprehend the value of the property as it related to this specific proposal. 

The discussions at the January 9 meeting indicate that the RDC is well aware of the fact that the 

value of this property has increased significantly since they acquired it. They recount the recent 

purchase of the land in 2022 of 248 acres for $4.7M, and determine they paid around $20,000 

per acre. The option agreement lists the purchase price as $50,000 per acre, for a total price of 

$9,044,000. This represents 150% increase in under 3 years. There are several comments on this 

fact. 

35:00: Mr. Durnell:  “But just as a benchmark, I mean this sounds like an astounding return on 

investment in a short period of time…” 

37:00: Mr. Thorgren: “So your point’s still well taken that it’s not very often that you would 

have this kind of a return on this sizeable a piece of property.” 

37:00: Mr. Cotton:  “That begs the question as to are we just becoming a very attractive city, 

or is there some additional reason to be concerned or cautious about getting that kind of 

inflated price? Meaning that’s an extraordinary bump in what 2- or 3-years sort of raises an 

eye.” 

Mr. Cotton raised the correct question. Why would a company pay such an inflated price? The 

correct answer is that a data center of the scale proposed in the package would stand to make 

tens of millions of dollars in revenue each and every year. A price of $50,000 per acre for that 

kind of return on investment is an exceptionally good deal. To borrow Mr. Cotton’s line, it begs 

the question as to whether, properly negotiated, the RDC might have obtained 2x-3x more than 

they got.  

But instead, only a generic answer of varying property values is offered by Mr. Douglas, and 

then the question is dropped. It is mentioned earlier in the meeting that there are 

representatives Tim Rust and Todd Leeth from Agincourt present in the room, yet no member of 

the RDC asks them anything.  

 

RECOMMENDATION: While the required appraisals (I do not have them and they are not 

mentioned) may have yielded a general market value, the potential end use must also be 

considered. As part of their fiduciary duties to obtain the best purchase price for the citizens of 

Valparaiso, the RDC must show deeper interest and take time to investigate anomalies in 

property appreciation before agreeing to a purchase price that ultimately may prove to be a 

low-ball offer. We should have heard discussion specific to whether or not $50,000 per acre was 

the current going rate for data center locations.   

 



10 
 

6. Agreeing to a possible bifurcation of its fiduciary duties to the citizens of Valparaiso. 

A key contract clause from the option agreement accepted by the RDC on January 9 reveals the 

RDC’s problematic commitment: ‘Commission will reasonably cooperate with Purchaser in 

connection with the Entitlements, including, without limitation, executing applications which 

require Commission’s signature, attending meetings of governmental authorities relating to the 

Entitlements and supporting Purchaser at such meetings, and taking such other action as 

reasonably requested by Purchaser in connection with the Entitlements, but at no cost or 

expense to Commission.’ 

 

 This suggests the RDC agreed to a possible bifurcation of its fiduciary duties under IC 36-7-14-

2.5, splitting its loyalty between serving Valparaiso’s citizens and advancing Agincourt’s private 

development goals.  

Under IC 36-7-14-2.5, the RDC must act in Valparaiso’s best interest (e.g., economic 

development, public welfare). Committing to "support Purchaser at such meetings" and "taking 

such other action as reasonably requested" might prioritize Agincourt’s interests over the 

public’s—especially if residents opposed the project (as they already did by March 2025). The 

phrase “without limitation” is particularly concerning. 

 

RECOMMENDATION: The RDC should never agree to any clauses that even suggest splitting 

loyalties away from the citizens of Valparaiso. As previously recommended, if there are non-

standard clauses presented, then invite a second and third legal opinion on it. 

 

 

 

 

 

 



11 
 

7. Failure to consider the need for rezoning. 

At no point during the January 9 meeting did the RDC discuss the need for rezoning the 500N 

property. The data center would have required a rezoning to industrial, a huge change for a 

location nestled between residential areas. We cannot know if this was mentioned during the 

private executive session, but it is obvious by its absence from the discussions on January 9. 

 

RECOMMENDATION: None. It’s inexcusable. Even if rezoning were discussed at the private 

executive session, it needed to be presented clearly to the public at the January 9 meeting prior 

to signing the option agreement.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



12 
 

8. Failure to enter an accurate effective date on page 1 of the option agreement. 

The effective date listed on the fully executed and receipted option agreement is January 3, 

2025. This is 3 days prior to the end of the RFO period, which ended at 3:00 p.m. (CST) on 

January 6, 2025. Mr. Thorgren didn’t sign the option agreement until January 9. 

 

 

This speaks to the sloppiness of the RDC in a rushed process to accept the option agreement. 

My limited understanding of Indiana contract law is that contract interpretation relies on the 

intent of the parties, but in this case since the listed date is obviously invalid and the only other 

date is Mr. Thorgren’s on January 9, it is difficult to determine what the intended date was. This 

could have brought issues with determining when the 180-day due diligence period actually 

expired.  

 

RECOMMENDATION: More careful attention to detail is required by the RDC.  The effective date 

should never be listed as occurring before the signature date.  

 

 



13 
 

9. Failure to manage publicly available files related to the property 500N. 

I have logged 5 different PDF file versions that were presented by the RDC, at one time or 

another, from March 4, 2025 to the writing of this report on March 12, 2025 as the public files 

for the 500N property. Three of these I downloaded from the City of Valparaiso website, and 

two of the versions were obtained by Access to Public Records Act (APRA) requests (not mine).  

 

All of these documents differ slightly, but in important ways. Many of the pages in the 

documents are the same, but a key page that appears in some of the PDF files but not others is 

a conceptual design showing a layout of the four proposed data center buildings over a map of 

the property. The file switch and disappearance of this page led to the public scrutiny outlined 

in Item 9 (below).  

My initial download, which was of the file labeled RFO-500-N, took place on March 4. In reading 

a Facebook post discussing the Environmental Advisory Board meeting that took place on 

March 3, I noticed City Council member Ellen Kapitan had posted a link to the file.  

The RFO-500-N file contains no cover letter, but has the signature of Mr. Thorgren on January 9 

as well as the conceptual design. 

  

 

 



14 
 

By March 5, however, the RFO-500-N file had been replaced with the file labeled Agincourt 

Investments LLC 500 North Proposal City of Valpo. This file adds the Agincourt cover letter, but 

the signature by Thorgren and the conceptual design are missing. 

 

This file swap was acknowledged in an email response from Ms. Kapitan.  

 



15 
 

The City of Valparaiso issued a press release on March 6 which contained a false statement that 

no conceptual designs existed (see item 9 below). I created a Facebook post highlighting the 

inaccuracy and shared both it and the file swap issue to several local Facebook groups around 

11PM on March 6. The next morning, the city replaced the file again, this time with the file 

labeled: 

Agincourt Investments LLC 500 North Proposal City of Valpo_202503070848485218 

The file label suggests it was created March 7, 2025, at 08:48:48 AM. In this file, Thorgren’s 

signature is still missing but the conceptual design has reappeared.  

On March 12, I noticed a fourth file had replaced the March 7th version. This file is labeled:  

Complete RFO 500 N_202503121045571503 

The file label suggests it was created March 12, 2025, at 10:45:57 AM. This file adds the full- 

sized text of the public notice, still lacks Thorgren’s signature, and contains the conceptual 

design. Note that this file was created after the announcement by Mayor Costas canceling the 

data center proposal on March 11.  

There is a fifth file that, to my knowledge, has never been posted to the city webpage. This file 

was obtained by my neighbor, Meghann Chonowski, in a Public Records Request. The file is 

labeled:  

37991 Option Agreement - Fully Executed & Receipted by Title 

This file omits the cover letter, but contains Thorgren’s signature, the conceptual design, and is 

the only known version to contain the signature of the title company. 

 

 



16 
 

 

 

NOTE: I am unable to share the PDF files in their entirety in this report. I have posted the files 

publicly and I will email a copy of them to any interested parties upon written request.  

 

RECOMMENDATION: Create a public file that can be added to with clear dates of when the 

documents were added. Never delete files or omit files that have previously been offered to the 

public. The file swapping and coinciding denial of the existence of a conceptual design was, in 

my opinion, the episode that caused the most damage to public trust. The most damage, that is, 

aside from the very notion of locating a data center next to residential areas.     

 

 

 

 



17 
 

10. Failure to coordinate with city public relations officials to avoid issuing false or misleading 

statements. 

 

 

Presented without comment. 

 

-END OF REPORT- 



Law Department  
lawdept@valpo.us 

Patrick Lyp 
City Attorney 

Samantha Camp 
Paralegal  

166 Lincolnway 
Valparaiso, IN 46383 
(219) 462-1161 
Valpo.us 

Response to March 12 report submitted by Bret M. Kutansky. 

1. Failure to conduct a fair, open, and viable RFO process.
I appreciate your observations about the RFO process.  Others have made 
similar comments.  That said, it has been acknowledged that the RDC’s 
process followed all legal requirements for the approval of the Option 
Agreement.  Going forward, the Commission will likely look to extend the 
RFO response period and engage in more public discussion. 

2. Failure to issue a newspaper advertisement with accurate dates. 
Although “sloppiness and a lack of attention to detail” might be a rather 
strong characterization, the Commission acknowledges your point as to 
using the wrong year.  Indiana law would not have negated the notice, if 
an objection had been filed.   

3. Failure to recognize the sensitive nature of a proposed data center 
and conduct preliminary due diligence prior to signing an option 
agreement. 
I would respectfully suggest that the Commission understood the 
concerns of the adjacent neighbors.  What was not apparent was the 
broader objection to the concept of a data center in Valparaiso.  Some 
jumped to conclusions about noise, water consumption, and power usage 
without knowing any specifics.  Had the process moved forward, those 
questions (and many others) would have been addressed publicly to the 
satisfaction of the RDC and City Council for the project to obtain requisite 
approvals. 

4. Failure to fully comprehend the terms of the option agreement. 
I appreciate your observations but respectfully disagree.  Section 11 of 
the Option Agreement is clear as to five (5) conditions that needed to be 
met “to the satisfaction of the Commission” before a sale could be 
completed.  That language is important.  As the due diligence process 
moved forward, the parties needed to negotiate an Economic 
Development Agreement to the Commission’s satisfaction.  That could 
have included all types of conditions relating to noise, water use, light or 
any other concern raised by the community.  Unless Agincourt met the 
request of the Commission, the sale would not have happened.  If 
Agincourt thought it could have built the data center without a rezone, it 
would have exercised its option.  Moreover, as I hope you can appreciate, 
Agincourt (nor any other purchaser) would have paid $50,000 an acre for 
land zoned “open space”. 

Moreover, Section 10 provided that upon Agincourt exercising its option, 
the parties had to complete an acceptable Real Estate Purchase 
Agreement.  At that point, the Commission would have required language 
relating to timelines, investment, and jobs.  These conditions would have 
prevented Agincourt from moving forward with the data center project 
without commitments satisfactorily to the Commission.   



The Commission and its attorney fully understood the terms of the Option Agreement. 

The assignability provision is boilerplate and was inserted to facilitate an assignment/transfer 
while ensuring the Commission had relevant information about any future party.       

5. Failure to fully comprehend the value of the property as it related to this specific proposal. 
As you reference, the RDC secured two appraisals for the property.  This is consistent with  
Indiana Code 36-7-14-22(b).  Concerning the proposed sale price, valuation of land to the 
Commission is often different from traditional transactions.  For example, the Commission has 
the ability to “capture” TIF (property taxes) for 25 years.  Although calculations were not finalized, 
the data center project would have likely generated more TIF (property taxes) than Pratt Paper 
– which currently stands as the largest property taxpayer in Valparaiso.  In addition, data centers 
often attract technological businesses and investment.  I would also note that end users for data 
centers often contribute significant funds to local schools and nonprofit organizations.  Those 
discussions would have taken place prior to the Economic Development Agreement being 
finalized.  

The Commission understood the value of its land was greater as a data center than as 
undeveloped open space.  As part of the Real Estate Purchase Agreement the Commission would 
have guarded against Agincourt reselling the property at a significant premium once the property 
was approved for a data center, which has happened in other communities.  Hypothetically, if 
the property had been resold for a data center by Agincourt, the Commission would receive 60% 
of the differential from what it sold the property to Agincourt.  Notwithstanding though, an offer 
three times the acquisition price plus the ability to collect 25 years of TIF property taxes as well 
as other potential benefits was not an example of lack of knowledge or blind indifference.   

6. Agreeing to a possible bifurcation of its fiduciary duties to the citizens of Valparaiso. 
First, your citation to Indiana Code 36-7-14-2.5 is misplaced.  The sale of property is not the 
“assessment, planning, replanning, remediation, development, and redevelopment of economic 
development areas.”  Agincourt was not requesting any financing assistance (TIF bonds) or other 
economic incentives.  This was not a Commission project.  It was the sale of excess land.  That 
doesn’t mean public concerns are irrelevant, but it does mean that the conflict you site is not 
applicable. 

As to the language in the Option Agreement about assisting Agincourt.  Those obligations are 
standard and necessary.  Agincourt needed rezoning.  Only the property owner can submit a 
rezoning request.  At a minimum, the Commission would have needed to sign the rezoning 
petition and confirmed that Agincourt had the Commission’s permission to seek the rezoning.  
Moreover, the Commission’s support was not carte blanche.  It was limited to Agincourt’s seeking 
Entitlements, which was defined in Section 8(c). 
There was no bifurcation of duties.   

7. Failure to consider the need for rezoning. 
This was an odd observation.  The Option Agreement explicitly references zoning changes 
(Section 8(c)).  Given the fact that the property is currently zoned “open space”, any proposed 
improvement would have required a zoning change or use variance from the City’s Board of 
Zoning Appeals. 









dmelcic
Text Box
2

dmelcic
Subject to Approval















CITY OF VALPARAISO REDEVELOPMENT COMMISSION

MARCH 2025

 

Consolidated  

Valparaiso 

Allocation                                                                                               

General Fund              Pratt Bond Grants (All Projects)
Debt Reserve

[RESTRICTED]

Total Monies 

Investments 

4445 4651 4652 4653 4654 4650

$8,065,403.44 $6,411,646.81 $29,829.58 -$62,290.52 $210,301.00 -$6,500,000.00 $14,654,890.31

Fund #

4445 Revenue (Taxes) $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

4445 Interest Income $7,120.99 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $196,760.64

4445 Parking Garage EV Chargers $620.59 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $2,255.13

4445 Transfer In $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

4445 Miscellaneous $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $140,142.59

4445 Refunds $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $2,200,000.00

4445 Reimbursements $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $387,999.99

4445 Temporary Loan $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

4651 Interest Income $0.00 $7,120.99 $0.00 $0.00 $196,760.64

4651 Contributions/Donations $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

4651 Transfer $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

4651 Miscellaneous $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $1,060.68

4651 Real Estate $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

4651 Tax Abatement $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

4651 Pilot Program $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

4651 ValpoNet Deposits $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

4651 ValpoNet Fiber Lease Payments $0.00 $1,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $22,381.50

4651 Other Income $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

4651 Refunds $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

4651 Reimbursements $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

4652 Pratt Bond $0.00 $0.00 $29,829.58 $0.00 $157,766.25

4653 Grants (All Reimbursed Projects) $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $33,033.62

4650 Transfer In $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

$7,741.58 $8,120.99 $29,829.58 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $3,338,161.04

Fund #

4445 Unappropriated $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

4445 Transfer Out $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

4445 Econ Development Initiatives $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $295.00

4445 Bond Obligations $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $9,978.79

4445 School Challenge Grants $973.05 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $72,959.99

4445 Professional Studies $10,839.85 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $10,839.85

4445 Professional Services $12,800.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $23,503.73

4445 Utility Improvements $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

4445 ValpoNet $914.95 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $5,470.70

4445 Building Improvements/Facades $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

4445 Public Safety Equipment $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $500,000.00

4445 Industrial Infrastructure $2,616.50 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $2,195,280.21

4445 Eastside (Memorial Drive) $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

4445 Workforce Housing Initiatives $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

4445 Journeyman TOD $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

4445 Environmental Protection $7,611.25 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $9,355.25

4445 Bus Service Expenses $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $800.00

4445 Grants Match $39,448.98 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $154,787.80

4445 Vale View $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $20,256.81

4445 Downtown Housing/Parking $149,226.59 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $234,171.82

4651 Unappropriated $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

4651 Operations Support $0.00 $1,237.86 $0.00 $0.00 $1,519.86

4651 Initiatives $0.00 $2,547.00 $0.00 $0.00 $13,863.00

4651 Green Initiatives/Public Art $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $17,000.00

4652 Pratt Bond $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $588,642.50

4653 Grants (All Projects) $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $37,765.62 $40,248.62

4650 Total Monies Investments $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

$224,431.17 $3,784.86 $0.00 $37,765.62 $0.00 $0.00 $3,898,973.93

$7,848,713.85 $6,415,982.94 $59,659.16 -$100,056.14 $210,301.00 -$6,500,000.00 $14,434,600.81

REVENUE

 TOTAL CASH REVENUE

DISBURSEMENTS

TOTAL EXPENDITURES

Fund Balances:  3/31/2025

*OVERALL FUND BALANCE INCLUDES MONEY INVESTED AT TRUST INDIANA 

 RDC Funds YTD 

Inclusive of Trust As 

of 3/1/2025

Balances as of 3/1/2025

dmelcic
Text Box
2

dmelcic
Subject to Approval



VALPARAISO, INDIANA 

REDEVELOPMENT COMMISSION 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 01-2025 
 

RESOLUTION OF THE VALPARAISO REDEVELOPMENT COMMISSION 

CONCERNING THE 2026 BUDGET YEAR DETERMINATION FOR TAX 

INCREMENT FOR THE VALPARAISO REDEVELOPMENT  

COMMISSION ALLOCATION AREA 

 

WHEREAS, the Valparaiso Redevelopment Commission (the "Commission"), has 

previously established the Consolidated Valparaiso Allocation Area No. 1, the Consolidated 

Valparaiso Allocation Area No. 2 (Vale View), the Calkins Hill Allocation Area, the Valpo LINC 

Allocation Area, the Journeyman Allocation Area, the Grand Gardner Allocation Area and the 

West Street Allocation Area (collectively, the "Allocation Areas") for purposes of capturing tax 

increment pursuant to Indiana Code 36-7-14-39 (the "Tax Increment"); 

 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Indiana Code 36-7-14-39 and 50 IAC 8-2-4, the Commission is 

required to make a determination on Tax Increment and notify overlapping taxing units as well as 

the Porter County Auditor and also the City Council (the "City Council") of Valparaiso, Indiana, 

as the fiscal body of the City, which created the Commission; and 

 

WHEREAS, with respect to the Allocation Areas, for budget year 2026, the Commission 

has determined the amount of the Tax Increment projected to be collected in 2026 as well as the 

amount of Tax Increment needed in 2026 to meet the Commission's outstanding debt service or 

lease payment obligations, to pay for projects that are located in or directly serve or benefit the 

Allocation Areas, and to meet other purposes permitted by Indiana Code 36-7-14-39(b)(3); 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE VALPARAISO 

REDEVELOPMENT COMMISSION AS FOLLOWS: 

 

SECTION ONE: The Commission has determined that all potential captured assessment 

(as defined in 50 IAC 8-1-16) with respect to the Allocation Areas for the January 1, 2025, 

assessment date (for budget year 2026) shall be captured assessment (as defined in 50 IAC 8-1-

10), and overlapping taxing units as well as the Porter County Auditor and the City Council will 

be provided written notice of such determination pursuant to Indiana Code 36-7-14-39(b)(4)(B). 

 

SECTION TWO: This Resolution shall take effect, and be in full force and effect, from 

and after its passage and approval by the Commission. 

dmelcic
Subject to Approval

dmelcic
Text Box
3



Resolution No. 01-2025 

ALL OF WHICH IS PASSED AND RESOLVED by the Valparaiso, Indiana Redevelopment 

Commission on _________________________________________________.  

 

VALPARAISO, INDIANA 

REDEVELOPMENT COMMISSION 

 

 

 

 _________________________________________  

President 

 

 

 

 _________________________________________  

Vice-President 

 

 

 

 _________________________________________  

Secretary 

 

 

 

 _________________________________________  

Member 

 

 

 

 _________________________________________  

Member 

 

ATTESTATION: 

 

 

 

 ___________________________________  

Commission Secretary 
 



 

TEMPORARY USE AGREEMENT 

206 Washington Street 

 

This Temporary Use Agreement (“Agreement”) is entered into April 10, 2025, by and 

between the Valparaiso Redevelopment Commission (“Commission”) and Porter County 

Career and Technical Education (“PCCTE”).  The parties acknowledge and agree that each is 

liable and responsible for performing the obligations and responsibilities as set forth within this 

Agreement. 

The Commission, in consideration of the terms, covenants and conditions set forth in the 

Agreement, does grant PCCTE the limited right to use the property identified in Exhibit A 

(“Parcel”) for vehicle parking associated with its educational activities.  Upon execution of this 

Agreement and prior to any vehicles parking on the Parcel, the parties shall meet and develop a 

Site Plan that will identify areas where parking will be allowed.  Costs for all signage will be paid 

by PCCTE.  Upon completion and approval of the Site Plan, PCCTE shall be allowed to use the 

Parcel for vehicle parking associated with its educational activities.  It is understood that the 

Commission is making the Parcel available to PCCTE as an accommodation to assist PCCTE in 

its student parking needs.  To that end, PCCTE accepts the Parcel in its current condition.  The 

Commission shall be under no obligation to repair or maintain the Parcel.  If at any point, PCCTE 

determines that the condition of the Parcel is not sufficient to meet its needs, its sole remedy will 

be to terminate this Agreement.  It is understood that the Parcel is part of a larger project to 

redevelop the former McGill facility.  At some future date, the Parcel will be needed and PCCTE’s 

access to the Parcel will be terminated. 

THE PARCEL IS USED SUBJECT TO THE FOLLOWING TERMS, CONDITIONS, 

COVENANTS AND AGREEMENTS:  

1. As part of the Site Plan, PCCTE shall be solely responsible for all costs relating to any 

maintenance and/or improvement of the Parcel. 

2.   PCCTE shall care for and maintain the Parcel in a neat and orderly condition. 

3.  Commission shall be the owner of the Parcel during the Term of this Agreement.  PCCTE 

shall have the limited right to use the Parcel consistent with this Agreement.    

4. PCCTE shall maintain the Parcel in full compliance with all federal, state, and local laws, 

ordinances and/or other governmental regulations. 

5.  PCCTE acknowledges that it is not covered under any Commission insurance policy.  

PCCTE acknowledges and assumes full responsibility for obtaining its own insurance to cover any 

injury or loss associated with the use of the Parcel.  Commission shall be added as an additional 

insured on the PCCTE’s insurance policy. 

dmelcic
Subject to Approval

dmelcic
Text Box
4



2 
 

6. PCCTE shall not use the Parcel for any purpose other than as a surface parking lot for 

vehicle parking associated with its educational activities. 

7.  PCCTE agrees if PCCTE, without Commission's consent, shall violate any of the terms of 

this Agreement, Commission shall provide written notice (“Default Notice”) to PCCTE.  Absent 

resolution of the violation identified in the Default Notice within thirty (30) days, it shall be lawful 

for the Commission to re-enter and repossess the Parcel, to remove all persons therefrom, to take 

exclusive possession of, remove all property therefrom and all rights of PCCTE in the Parcel shall 

immediately cease.  

8. Term.  The term of this Agreement shall commence upon execution of the Agreement by 

both parties and shall extend to June 1, 2026 (“Term”).  PCCTE shall have the option to extend 

the Term for an additional twelve (12) months with sixty (60) days’ written notice to the 

Commission given prior to the end of the initial Term.  At any time, upon sixty (60) days’ advance 

written notice, either party may (without cause) provide written notice to terminate this Agreement. 

9. Consideration.  PCCTE is a nonprofit educational organization.  Except as otherwise 

provided in this Agreement, no rent shall be paid by PCCTE. 

10. Rules.  As part of preparing a Site Plan, the parties will establish rules relating to the 

parking of vehicles.  Such rules will include the prohibition of overnight parking and the parking 

of vehicles unrelated to PCCTE.  The Commission may secure the services of a tow truck company 

to enforce this rule.  

11. Additional Terms. PCCTE shall not have the right to transfer or assign the Agreement. 

12. Commission’s Representations.  Commission represents and warrants the following to 

the PCCTE: 

 (a) Current Title.  Commission affirms that good and marketable fee simple title to 

the Parcel is vested in Commission. 

 (b) Litigation.  There are no suits, actions, or proceedings pending or, to the best of 

the Commission's knowledge, threatened by any party, including governmental authorities 

or agencies, against or involving the Parcel or to which the Commission is or may become 

a party in connection with the Parcel. 

13. Utilities.  Consistent with the Site Plan, PCCTE shall pay all charges for gas, electric, light, 

heat, power, and telephone or other communication system used, rendered, or supplied upon or in 

connection with the Parcel during the term of this Agreement.   

14. Taxes.  Commission shall be responsible for timely payment of all real estate taxes and 

other governmental charges, if any, during the Term of this Agreement. 

15. Environmental Compliance. PCCTE shall not cause or permit the release of any 

hazardous substance, contaminant, pollutant, or petroleum in, on, or under the Parcel.  PCCTE 

shall fully and timely comply with all applicable federal, state, and local statutes and regulations 

relating to the protection of the environment.   



3 
 

16. State and Local Law.  PCCTE shall not permit the Parcel to be used for any unlawful 

purpose and shall at all times comply with the laws of the State of Indiana, and the rules, orders, 

regulations, laws and ordinances of all legally constituted governmental authorities having 

jurisdiction over the Parcel, including the buildings and improvements now or hereafter erected 

thereon and also include sidewalks, parking areas and alleys. 

17. Maintenance.  PCCTE shall, at its own cost and expense, repair, replace, and maintain the 

Parcel and any and all improvements erected or placed thereon, in a good, safe, and substantial 

condition and shall use all reasonable precautions to prevent waste, damage, or injury to the Parcel, 

normal wear and tear excepted. 

18. Insurance. PCCTE, at its own expense, shall maintain a liability insurance policy 

(comprehensive general liability insurance) including contractual liability coverage in the amount 

of no less than an aggregate limit of One Million Dollars ($1,000,000.00) and shall be written on 

an occurrence basis.  The insurer must be licensed in the State of Indiana and must agree to provide 

Commission at least (30) days prior written notice of a cancellation or reduction in coverage. 

PCCTE shall name Commission as additional insured. 

19. Indemnification.  To the maximum extent allowed by law, PCCTE will reimburse 

Commission, and Commission’s officers, directors, affiliates, agents, employees, and 

representatives (collectively, “Commission Parties”) for and will indemnify, defend, and hold 

harmless Commission Parties from and against any and all loss or damages sustained by, liability 

or charges imposed on, and claims or causes of action asserted against Commission Parties arising 

in whole or in part out of or by reason of (i) any accident or occurrence in or on the Parcel, any 

use of or business conducted in or on the Parcel, or any hidden or apparent defect in the Parcel; or 

(ii) any damage to or loss of any property of any person occupying the Parcel or any of their 

respective officers, directors, shareholders, affiliates, agents, employees, or contractors 

(collectively, “PCCTE Parties”); or (iii) any act, negligence, or fault of Commission Parties, 

whether occurring on the Parcel or on any other part of any contiguous real estate owned by 

Commission.  PCCTE’s reimbursement and indemnity obligations will include, but not be limited 

to, any and all penalties, assessments, fines, damages, interest, settlement amounts, judgments, 

losses, reasonable attorneys’ fees, and other expenses, and will survive the expiration or other 

termination of this Agreement. 

20. Signs.  PCCTE shall erect all signage shown on and incorporated as part of the Site Plan. 

21. Notices.  All notices permitted or required by this Agreement shall be given in writing and  

in such form as is reasonably calculated by party giving notice to inform the recipient party as 

provided for in this Agreement and shall be considered given (i) upon receipt if hand delivered or 

transmitted via facsimile to the party or person intended, or (ii) one business day after deposit with 

a nationally recognized over-night commercial courier service, air bill prepaid, or (iii) three (3) 

days after deposit in the United States mail postage prepaid, by certified or registered mail, return 

receipt requested, addressed to the party or persons intended at the address provided herein or to 

any change of address delivered by the party entitled to notice pursuant to this section.  Notice to 

each party may be provided as follows: 



4 
 

 

  PCCTE:  Porter County Career and Technical Education 

c/o: Audra Peterson 

1005 North Franklin Street 

Valparaiso, Indiana 

 

  Commission:  Valparaiso Redevelopment Commission 

     c/o: Director of Development 

     166 W Lincolnway  

     Valparaiso, IN 46383 

       

22. Amendments.  None of the covenants, terms or conditions of this Agreement to be kept 

and performed by PCCTE or Commission shall in any manner be averted, waived, changed or 

abandoned except by a written instrument duly signed by both parties, and not otherwise; and 

consent to or any acquiescence in any breach of this Agreement shall not constitute a waiver of 

any other or later breach of the same or of any other covenant. 

23. Surrender.  Upon the expiration or sooner termination of this Agreement, PCCTE shall 

surrender to Commission the Parcel, together with all other property affixed to the Parcel.  PCCTE 

will remove any signs that designate the Parcel for PCCTE parking.   

24. Authority of Parties.  Each party represents and warrants to the other that they have full 

authority to enter into and perform this Agreement in accordance with its conditions.  

25. Litigation.  In the event of litigation between the parties with respect to this Agreement 

the performance of their respective obligations hereunder, the losing party shall pay all costs and 

expenses incurred by the prevailing party in connection with such litigation, including, but not 

limited to, reasonable attorneys’ fees.   

26. Governing Law.  This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with 

the laws of the State of Indiana. 

27. Recording.  Upon the request of either party to this Agreement, both parties shall execute 

a Memorandum of Agreement for the purpose of recording in the appropriate office in the county 

in which the Parcel is located. 

 

 

[Signature Page to Follow] 

 

 

 



5 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, PCCTE and COMMISSION have signed and sealed the Agreement 

the day and year first above written.  

 

Valparaiso Redevelopment Commission Porter County Career and Technical 

Education 

 

 

 

_____________________    _________________________ 

By: Rob Thorgren     By:  Audra Peterson 

Title:  President     Title: Director 





 

1 
 

 

Redevelopment Commission 
 

Attainable Housing Grant and Application 
 

The 2025 budget of the Valparaiso Redevelopment Commission dedicated funds to 

provide grants to community-based organizations for land acquisition and/or 

infrastructure improvements with the intent of buying down new residential workforce 

housing costs.  The scarcity of buildable residential lots has escalated land values.  The 

cost to extend and/or improve public infrastructure can also be cost barriers to 

affordable new home construction. It is the desires of the City Administration and the 

Redevelopment Commission to encourage more workforce housing for persons residing 

or employed in the City of Valparaiso and to make the transition to home ownership 

more attainable.  Providing grants toward land acquisition and infrastructure 

improvements will result in the attainable new home construction of less than $300,000.    

Grant funding is to be used exclusively for land purchase and/or improvement of 

development infrastructure.  Infrastructure includes roads, alleys, sidewalks, pathways, 

water, sanitary sewer, storm sewer, etc.  This is not an all-inclusive list and may include 

additional items as deemed appropriate by the Redevelopment Commission.  Land and 

development must be within the City. 

This grant is intended for owner-occupied residential properties only.  Eligible housing 

types include single, duplex, townhomes, and condos.  Applications for land purchase or 

development infrastructure improvements targeting multi-family apartments and rentals 

units are ineligible. 

Applicant Information 

Organization Name:   
Contact Person:          
Title:          
Mailing Address:  
    
Email Address:  
Phone Number:  
Website (optional):  
 

Project Information 

1. Check the applicable grant category (one or both): 

dmelcic
For Review

dmelcic
Text Box
5.



 

2 
 

Land Acquisition: ___  
Infrastructure Improvements: ___  

 
2. Briefly describe the project and explain how the funds will be used.  (If more 

space is needed, attach an exhibit.) 
 
 
 
 

3. Provide a breakdown of the estimated total project budget for the following: soft 
costs (design, engineering, etc) and hard costs (land, construction, etc).  

 
 
  
 

4. Grant request amount by category (if applicable):    
If grant request is for land acquisition, please provide property appraisal or 
similar independent statement of value. 
 
 

 

Applicant and Project Criteria 

1. Is the applicant a locally registered 501(c)(3) or sponsored by a 501(c)(3) 

organization from NW Indiana and incorporated in the State of Indiana? 

Yes: ___   No: ___ (Provide sponsor contact and sponsorship agreement.)  
  

2. Applicant agrees to use predominantly local labor and reasonably purchase 
supplies and materials locally in NW Indiana. 

Yes: ___   No: ___   
 

3. List the preferred builder(s)/contractor(s) for this project (if known). 

 

a.  

b.  

c.  

d.  

 

4. List the source of funding for this project or briefly describe the process by which 

applicant plans to secure financial resources to complete the project. (If more 

space is needed, attach an exhibit.) 

 

a.   



 

3 
 

b.  

c.  

d.  

5. Include a preliminary site plan. 

 

6. Provide an estimated timetable to start and complete the project. 

 

7. Provide a price range for the homes being constructed in the development. 

 

8. Provide the total number and size of units expected to be built. 

 

9. Provide information on the percentage of development lots intended for 

attainable housing and for market rate housing: 

 

 Attainable: ____%  Market Price: ____% 

 

10. Will any of the lots be sold to private homebuilders?   

Yes: ___ If yes, how many of the lots: ____ 
No: ___ 
 

11. Has the project received City of Valparaiso review and approval? 

 

Yes: ___    

No: ___ If no, describe steps needed to obtain project approval.   

 
12. Provide a list of Board of Directors and Officers. 

 
13. Has the Board of Directors authorized submitting an application for the Attainable 

Housing Grant from the Valparaiso Redevelopment Commission?    
 

Yes: ___ If yes, provide evidence of board authorization.   
No: ___    

 

Grant Administration 

Grant funds may be paid out for this project in two ways:  
 

1. Upon completion of the work, the applicant shall submit copies of receipts and 

the lien waiver to the Redevelopment Commission as evidence the project was 

paid in full by the grantee.   The Redevelopment Commission will make full 

payment based on the terms of the grant following the next RDC board meeting.   



 

4 
 

 

2. During the construction process invoices may be submitted at the 50%, 90% and 

100% completion of the project.  The Redevelopment Commission will review 

reimbursement requests and approve payment based on the terms of the grant 

following the next regular Redevelopment Commission meeting.  With each 

payment request should be accompanied by a corresponding lien waiver based 

on previous reimbursements paid.   

 

3. Submit this application and request for payment to: 

Redevelopment Commission 
166 Lincolnway 
Valparaiso, IN 46383 



dmelcic
Text Box
6.



















CITY OF VALPARAISO, IN

ENGINEER'S COST ESTIMATE

Montdale Park Dr

Date: April 3rd, 2025

Item DESCRIPTION QUANTITY

No

1 Mobilization and Demobilization 1

2 Maintaining Traffic 1

3 Milling, Asphalt, 1.5" 6,760

4 HMA Surface, Type B, 9.5mm 560

5 HMA Base, Type B, 25.0mm 1,680

6 Joint Adhesive, Surface 1,900

7 Joint Adhesive, Interm. 1,900

8 Concrete Patching Allowance 100,000

9 Casting, Adj. to Grade 3

Sub Total = 

Contingency (10%) = 

Construction Total = 

31,170.00$           

325,000.00$        

293,830.00$        

dol 1.00$                     100,000.00$        

ea 500.00$                1,500.00$             

lft 0.75$                     1,425.00$             

lft 0.75$                     1,425.00$             

ton 75.00$                  42,000.00$           

ton 72.00$                  120,960.00$        

lsum 3,000.00$             3,000.00$             

syd 2.00$                     13,520.00$           

Dols. Cent Dols. Cent

lsum 10,000.00$           10,000.00$           

1.5" Mill & 6" Overlay

UNIT UNIT PRICE AMOUNT

City of Valparaiso

Engineering Dept


